

# **CPZ POLICIES TASK GROUP**

Public Document Paok -

# Tuesday, 20th January, 2015

# 6.00 pm

Publication date: 13 January 2015

<ul> <li>DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST (IF ANY)</li> <li>MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 to be submitted and signed. </li> <li>CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP (Pages 5) The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggest recommendations. Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities.</li></ul>	, an ion	ors K Hastrick, A Joynes, D Walford and P Jeffree
<ul> <li>MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 to be submittee and signed. </li> <li>CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP (Pages 5) The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggest recommendations. Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities. </li> <li>DATE OF NEXT MEETING</li> </ul>	1.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
<ul> <li>The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 to be submitted and signed.</li> <li>CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP (Pages 5) The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggest recommendations.</li> <li>Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities.</li> <li>DATE OF NEXT MEETING</li> </ul>	2.	DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST (IF ANY)
<ul> <li>and signed.</li> <li>CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP (Pages 5).</li> <li>The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggest recommendations.</li> <li>Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities.</li> <li>DATE OF NEXT MEETING</li> </ul>	3.	MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)
The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggest recommendations. Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities. DATE OF NEXT MEETING		The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 to be submitted and signed.
recommendations. Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities. DATE OF NEXT MEETING	4.	CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP (Pages 5 - 16
5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING		The report sets out issues raised by Public and Members with suggested recommendations.
		Also attached are some comparisons with other local authorities.
• Monday 2 February 2015	5.	DATE OF NEXT MEETING
		• Monday 2 February 2015

## Agenda Item 3

#### CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE POLICES SCRUTINY TASK GROUP

#### 18 December 2014

#### Present: Councillor Collett (Chair) Councillors Hastrick, Jeffree and Joynes

Officers: Committee and Scrutiny Officer Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer (RW)

#### 1. ELECTION OF CHAIR / COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Apologies were received from Councillor Walford.

It was noted that Councillor Jeffree would take Councillor Martins' place on the Task Group on a permanent basis.

The Task Group was asked to elect a Chair for the Task Group.

AGREED

that Councillor Collett be elected Chair of the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) Policies Task Group.

#### 2. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest.

#### 3. SCOPE AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Task Group received, from the Committee and Scrutiny Officer, documents relevant to the review.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer advised that scrutiny of the CPZ policies had been requested by the Head of Regeneration and Development. This would not be a review of the entire parking scheme; the task group's views were sought on aspects detailed in the scope.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer explained that there had been no review of CPZ policies since 1997. She noted the specific areas which it had been suggested the group should look at and then decide whether these needed alteration in any form. Suggested areas to review included:

Resident Permits: Currently two permits per household / one per person – was this ideal?

Visitor Vouchers: Was the allocation sufficient?; too many?; too few? **Business Permits:** 

At present one permit was allocated per business. Was this sufficient?

Exemptions:

The Task Group might like to look at this aspect of the scheme

Length of Vehicles:

An assessment of vehicle lengths and provision for differing types of vehicles could be considered by the group.

Match day parking and extent of each individual zone: The group was not asked to look at these sections of the CPZ policies.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer stressed that the work required of the group would need to accomplished in a very short time frame: it was intended that the report should be presented at Cabinet at the February meeting.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer advised that Council officers had, over time, received a considerable degree of feedback and questions from residents and members of the public. She recommended that, before the next meeting, transport and parking services officers would be asked to prepare documents listing comments and questions received along with officers' observations and suggestions. At the meeting the task group could consider options available and decide on recommendations for possible changes to policies.

The meeting discussed the aims and contents of the report.

It was decided that there would be no meeting to gather residents' views as there was too little time before the report needed to be finalised.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer agreed to research parking provision and policies at Harrow, Three Rivers, Dacorum, St Albans, Hertsmere and Stevenage Councils and then pass this information to the task group.

The Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer advised that the Transport and Infrastructure Section Head and the Parking Services Manager would attend the next meeting on 20 January 2015.

It was decided that a survey would be sent to Councillors of those wards with a CPZ (Callowland, Central, Holywell, Nascot, Park and Vicarage) to be mailed back by 20 January. The Committee and Scrutiny Officer agreed to email the task group and also the Head of Regeneration and Development for suggestions for questions. She would also look at questions posed by the consultant to residents and businesses in the CPZ areas and email these to the group.

The survey would be finalised and sent out immediately after the Christmas Break.

#### 4. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

- Tuesday 20 January 2015Monday 2 February 2015

Chair CPZ Policies Scrutiny Task Group

The meeting started at 6.00 p.m. and finished at 6.30 p.m.

This page is intentionally left blank

### Agenda Item 4

#### CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE ISSUES FOR TASK GROUP

The Controlled Parking Zone scheme has been in operation within Watford since 1997. Residents and businesses of the scheme have been consulted upon the rules and arrangements in both 2007 and 2013, which has resulted in a change to some zones adopting full time hours, further to changes the denomination of the annual allocation of visitor vouchers available. Residents and businesses did not indicate that they wished to see any significant changes made to the operational hours or zone boundaries of the scheme and the vast majority of rules remained unchanged.

However, a number of fundamental rules and policies relating to the administration of the scheme did not form part of the consultations but continue to be raised and challenged by both residents and members. As a result, the Parking Service determined that it would be beneficial to all if those issues were considered and clarified by members to determine if they remain fit for purpose or require amendment. The specific points in question are outlined below:

#### 1. Vehicle Length Limit

Current: length limit 5.25m (height limit 2.3m).

The length limit is equal to the size of a standard Ford Transit van and the restriction applies to residential and business permits.

2007 and 2013 consultations showed that residents continued to support the length limit.

**Issue:** Some members call for enforcement of the rule, which is done reactively, and others complain about enforcement of the rule. A number of business vehicles belonging to commercial premises or individuals exceed the current limit but we have not received complaints.

#### **Recommendation:**

The 5.25m length limit is retained for all residential permits. Extend the length limit for business permits (CPZ businesses) to 6.0m

#### 2. Business Permits

**Current rules:** 1 permit per business (Up to two registration marks)

No off street parking available on premises

Registered for business rates

Vehicle must be registered to the business and at the business address

"Vehicle must be used on an intermittent daily basis"

Permits not issued for commuting

**Issue:** rules are too vague and do not appear to have been consistently applied in the past.

A number of existing permits do not meet the current criteria and some have had them for a number of years. Attempts to withdraw or refuse issue have resulted in complaints and this is difficult due to the number of permits in operation that do not meet the criteria.

Recommendation: Criteria needs to be revisited. Vehicle should be registered to company but not necessarily at CPZ address (Head Office address etc) – not to an individual at a residential address Vehicles must realistically be used for the stated operation

#### 3. Blue Badge Drivers

**Current:** permits are issued free to residents whose vehicle is registered to them at their CPZ address and prove their residency in the usual manner but provide a valid blue badge in their name.

**Issue:** There are an increasing number of applicants who are seeking free permits because their wife or mother or relative within the household is a blue badge holder and they have caring responsibilities.

**Recommendation:** Extend free permit issue to cover parents looking after children under 16 years old. Currently 256 residential permits issued free to BB holders/drivers (Loss of income to Council £5,632) Figure likely to increase if extended to carers/partners/relatives (for those over 16 years old). We do not see the correlation between charging for a permit and hindering the individual's ability to continue to care for the adult blue badge holder but this may need to be checked with Legal.

#### 4. One permit per person

**Current:** Each Council tax property entitled to up to 2 permits but only 1 permit per person

**Issue:** Increasing number of residents are seeking two permits in their name and state this does not increase the overall numbers of vehicles on the highway or the maximum number of permits in the household beyond two. We are seeing increased member support of these requests and questioning of the rule.

**Recommendation:** Rule should remain. Up to 2 permits are available to each household but the 1 permit person appears to have attempted to curb each household having 2 permits where it can be avoided. Where these requests are

refused, there will be one less vehicle on the public highway and this is significantly important in central CPZ zones where the availability of space is at a premium such as St Marys Road, where a specific contested request was made.

#### 5. Funerals (Policy)

**Current:** Exemption only for official vehicles (limo's/hearse)

**Issue:** Requests from individuals and members for non-enforcement of whole roads during specific dates/hours when guests attending CPZ address for funerals. Generally accepted when informed of policy but some members less so.

**Recommendation:** Do not change policy – will impact significantly on residents and businesses in some areas

 Visitor Voucher Abuse (TRO Revocation) + not scratched zero PCN's Current: Rules relating to eligibility of vouchers outlined in TRO and instructions for use on face and reverse of vouchers

**Issue:** Vouchers are abused by a small number of residents, who pass them to businesses and commuters (potentially sell them) or use a variety of methods to reuse a single voucher. A small number of motorists do not scratch the zero when they claim to have arrived on the hour and seek cancellation of any PCN issued, which has often been supported by members.

**Recommendation:** Amendment required to TRO to allow for the revocation of vouchers when they are abused and confirm that all minutes on Visitor Vouchers must be scratched, including zero. (Visitor Vouchers have been amended to make this even clearer and recent Traffic Penalty Tribunal (TPT) decision supports Council has done all it can)

7. Doctor and Health Visitor (DHV) Permits (TRO Criteria & Charges) Current: a number of "all zone" permits are issued to various health and caring organisations, which are known as Doctor, Health Visitor (DHV) permits. These are charged at £20 each and allow the holder to visit patients living within the controlled parking zone during restricted hours.

**Issue:** there is no formal criteria for the application of either of these permits. This can make the assessment of new applications or requests for additional permits difficult. Furthermore, the use of DHV permits is not included in the governing CPZ TRO.

**Recommendation:** the price of DHV permits is reviewed with consideration given to a tiered pricing structure. A formal criteria should also be created and a suitable clause is inserted in the TRO to reflect this. All DHV permits are revoked and re-issued to applicants under the new criteria and pricing structure.

#### 8. Staff Permits (TRO Criteria & Charges)

**Current:** there are a number of Council staff whose roles require them to carry out visits within the controlled zones and are also issued with "all zone" permits. These are charged at £100 and are intended to be used on a 'pool' basis rather than issued to individuals. A number of external organisations have also historically been using these permits, including those which used to form a department of the council. This includes Watford Community Housing Trust, Hertfordshire County Council Highways Department and West Watford Community Association.

**Issue:** there is no formal criteria for the application of either of these permits. This can make the assessment of new applications or requests for additional permits difficult. Furthermore, the use of staff permits is not included in the governing CPZ TRO. Whether external organisations should receive 'staff' permits has also to be questioned.

**Recommendation:** a formal criteria is created and a suitable clause is inserted in the TRO to reflect this

#### 9. Late Night Enforcement (Residential Roads)

**Current:** Evening enforcement takes place of Zone E (Met Quarter) to 10pm weekdays/Saturdays with some enforcement on Sundays. The general approach to evening enforcement across the town is 1-2 evenings per week until 10pm which includes one evening until 11pm for the overnight lorry ban. This is the only time that CEO's go into residential roads but do not issue to residential vehicles. All other evening enforcement only relates to the town centre and roads with bus routes. This is all further to weekday matchday enforcement in specific zones. Any enforcement in residential roads, which are primarily Euston Avenue and St Marys Road, is reactive to enforcement requests due to obstruction and access concerns for larger vehicles in need of using the turning heads governed by double yellow lines.

**Issue:** whilst some residents and members call for enforcement of the double yellow lines in the turning head of residential roads, some residents on the receiving end of such enforcement do not wish this to take place and criticise the service. **Recommendation:** allowing residents to use the yellow lines in the evenings does not appear to have caused any specific issues, further to those raised by the emergency services in Zone J area, and this creates additional space where and when it is often at a premium. Continue current arrangements and be reactive to

specific yellow line complaints in circumstances where safety or access concerns may exist.

#### 10. Proof of Residency (Vehicle Ownership)

**Current:** All applicants seeking a residents parking permit must provide a proof of residency (dated within the last 3 months) or their name must appear on the electoral register. Further, residents must supply a proof of vehicle ownership (V5 log book or insurance) each year.

**Issue:** the proof of residency and vehicle ownership is viewed as onerous by some residents who are unhappy at providing the same documents each year.

**Recommendation:** the need to prove residency is an important safe-guard to ensure that permits are not issued to individuals who are no longer resident. The requirement for a V5 or insurance document each year should be removed if the renewal relates to the same vehicle.

### 11. Refunds (Not formalised – Admin fee)

**Current:** Permit holders who no longer require their permits and have more than 3 full months remaining can return their permit to the Parking Shop and apply for a prorata refund for the number of full months remaining (as shown on the chart below).

PERMIT COST		F	ULL		MONTHS			REMA	;	
£	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2 1
6 + 12			NO	REF		GIVE	N			
	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£
22 RES	12	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	NONE
52 RES	44	40	36	32	28	24	20	16	12	NONE
60 BUS	44	40	36	32	28	24	20	16	12	NONE
150 BUS	132	120	108	96	84	22	69	48	36	NONE
300 BUS	264	240	216	192	168	144	120	96	72	NONE

**Issue:** the permit refund pricing structure is not standardised and leaves the Council open to challenge

**Recommendation:** that a standard administration fee of £10 is deducted from the refund due on each permit and a pro-rata refund for the remaining months, for permits with more than three months remaining, is provided by BACS upon application. This would also allow for refunds to be given for permits with the full 12 months remaining. The new structure would look as below:-

PERMIT COST		FUL	L	MO	NTHS		REMAINING			
£	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	2 1
6 + 12			NO	REF	UNDS	GIVE	N			
	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£
22 RES	11	10	9	8	7	6	5	4	3	0
52 RES	38.50	35	31.50	28	24.50	21	17.50	14	10.50	0
60 BUS	44	40	36	32	28	24	20	16	12	0
150 BUS	126.50	115	103.50	92	80.50	69	57.50	46	34.50	0
300 BUS	264	240	216	192	168	144	120	96	72	0

12. Driveway CPZ parking by permit holders (Change TRO to allow revocation) Current: All residents sign a declaration agreeing not to park in front of vehicular access points and driveways and acknowledge that this could result in the withdrawal of their permits.

**Issue:** On occasion we receive complaints of this behaviour and it is usually dealt with by writing to the permit holding resident and reminding them of the declaration. However, there is no formal provision in the TRO that would allow the Council to withdraw the permit in this circumstance.

**Recommendation:** A suitable clause needs to be written into the TRO so that persistent instances of abuse can be dealt with.

#### 13. Residents Permits minimum tenancy period

**Current:** Residents must only prove residency by way of electoral roll, tenancy agreement, Council Tax or utility bill etc. We do not issue annual permits to applicants who will be resident for periods of less than 6 months.

**Issue:** This is not a formalised process and we are frequently presented with applications from tenants in temporary housing etc seeking annual permits, although they will only be resident for short term periods.

**Recommendation:** Formalise the minimum 6 months tenancy period to qualify for a 12 month permit. All other residents remain entitled to visitor vouchers.

Local Authority	Resident Permi	ts	Non-resident	Visitors	Business Permi	ts	restrictions permits visi	Doctor / Health	Dispensations	
4	Max. no. per property	Max. no. per individual	— private landlords	Vouchers Max. no.	Max. no. per business	Qualifying criteria	restrictions	permits	visitor permits	
Watford BC	2	1	Not eligible	400 hours 15 x 1 day 2 x 1 week	1 (max. 2 registrations per permit)	Yes	Yes 5.25m long 2.3m high	Yes Request in writing	Yes Through medical organisation	Yes Tradesmen apply incl. filming
Local Authorities	within Watford's co	omparator group								
Broxbourne BC	Not applicable	resident permits r	not issued							
Dacorum BC	3	1		Varies per zone, generally between 600- 800 hours 4 x 1 week	1 (max. 2 registrations per permit)	Yes	Yes 5.25m long 2.3m high			
East Herts DC	2	t.		Varies per zone, generally 500 hours 4 x 1 week						Yes Trades apply Funerals – hearse and cortege only Weddings – bridal vehicle only
Hertsmere BC	4	No	No	1 x Annual permit 1 book of 20 x ½ day	In car parks depending on availability		Yes	Yes – essential services, apply in writing details of service provided	Yes – no restrictions	
North Herts DC	No limit except Baldock Zone A only 1 permit issued			1 x Visitor permit Books of 10 x 1 hour available (no maximum Baldock Zone A not entitled to any visitor permits or vouchers	1 (max. 2 registrations per permit)	Yes	Yes, motorcycles, cars, light vans and vehicles under 3.5 tonnes			Trades apply if no visitor permit or ticket available

#### Controlled Parking Zones / Parking Permits Comparator Information

Local Authority	<b>Resident Permit</b>	5	Non-resident	Visitors	<b>Business Permit</b>	s	Vehicle size restrictions	Special permits	Doctor / Health visitor permits	Dispensations
	Max. no. per property	Max. no. per individual	private landlords	Vouchers Max. no.	Max. no. per business	Qualifying criteria	Testitetions	permita		
St Albans City & DC	3 – if no off- street parking 2 – if off-street parking available Max. 2 registrations per permit			Zone type B - 12 books of 10 vouchers of up to 4 hours per day or all day Zone type A – 6 books of 10 vouchers	1	Yes	Yes 5.25m long 2.28m high			Works permits available if there are no off-street parking facilities
	Non-related residents to Council tax payer acquire through landlord			Plus 2 x 1 week						
Stevenage BC	No resident perm (hearse and corte	it zones are oper ege only) or wedd	ated. Where there lings (bridal vehicle	are parking restriction only).	ons trades people o	can apply for a c	dispensation. Discre	tionary dispensation	s can be applied fo	or, e.g. funerals
Three Rivers DC	2 or 1 depending on zone	1		1 x annual permit Day visitor vouchers available, sold in books of 10	Permits for designated bays in car parks	Yes	Yes 5.25m long 2.3m high	Application in writing		
Welwyn / Hatfield BC	3	No		250 visitor vouchers	Yes – depends on location Residential areas usually restricted to 1	Yes	5.25m long 2.3m high 3.5 tonne	Carer permits – each considered on own merits	purchased by practice – name and vehicle registration on permit	Visitors vouchers to be used or temporary business permit for trades
Dartford BC	1 permit if no off-street parking Multiple permits per household if sufficient on- street space available			Up to 5 books per month (books have 5 x 1 day vouchers)				Max 4 temporary permits (valid for up to 4 weeks) – allows household vehicles without a permit to park Season permits – non-zone residents to park in specific bays (commuters)	-10	Trades able apply for a dispensation certificate.

Local Authority	Resident Permit	Resident Permits		Visitors Vouchers	Business Permits		Vehicle size	Special	Doctor / Health	Dispensations
	Max. no. per property	Max. no. per individual	private landlords	Vouchers Max. no.	Max. no. per business	Qualifying criteria		permits	visitor permits	
Rushmoor BC	Varies depending on number of off- street spaces at property – some areas max. of 1 permit			Available 12 x 1 day						
Woking BC	Varies depending on number of off- street spaces at property or location of zone			Available to eligible residents individually or in books of 5 x 1 day (used for visitors and contractors)				Carers permit – one issued to resident, by application Resident's off- peak car park permit – certain roads only Resident's 24 hour discounted car park permit – certain roads only can apply	Operational permits for medical staff, by application	
Other local autho	rities	1								
Brent	3			1 x Annual visitor household 3 x event days 2 x event days 1 x visitor permit depending on eligibility	3 x business permits 3 x business livery permits 3 x event day business permits	Yes	6.5m long 2.5m high max 5 tonnes	Annual essential user permit – including carers, chiropodists, physiotherapists and clerics Essential user permit application by post or email	Health emergency badge – medical professionals Doctors parking permit – park in doctor's bay	
Harrow	Not applicable	Not applicable		10 books per annum			No	Postcode permits for carers	No	Builders / trades apply for 2 weeks or 1 month permit
Hillingdon	4	1 (?)		24 sheets per year (10 vouchers per sheet)	1 – surface car parks 1 – address in scheme	Yes	5.3m long 2.3m high			

Local Authority	Resident Perm	Resident Permits		Visitors	Business Pern	nits	Vehicle size restrictions	Special	Doctor / Health	Dispensations
	Max. no. per property	Max. no. per individual	<ul> <li>private</li> <li>landlords</li> </ul>	Vouchers Max. no.	Max. no. per business	Qualifying criteria	restrictions	permits	visitor permits	
Luton BC	No	1	No	50 x 1 day	1 per person	Yes	less than 3 tonnes 5.3m long 2.25m high	Care permits for care workers / carers		Trades carrying out work – specific criteria
Bedford BC	3	Not applicable		1 free book Up to 2 more books (approx. 30 vouchers per book) Trades to use visitors vouchers	2	Yes Demonstrate need	5.3m long 2.8m high	Voluntary organisations – discretionary have to show operational need – 1 permit parking limited to 2 hours max.	Healthcare Permit – healthcare organisation must have a named Healthcare Permit Administrator Criteria Parking limited to 2 hours max.	